IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA CASE NO. FIRST DISTRICT CASE NO. 88-1568

STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION, OFFICE OF STATE EMPLOYEES' INSURANCE,

Petitioner,

vs.

TERRI J. GANSON,

Respondent.

JAM 29 1020

Overes, 4 years courts

By Depthy Clerk

JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF OF PETITIONER,
STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION,
OFFICE OF STATE EMPLOYEES' INSURANCE,
ON PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW
FROM THE FIRST DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

AUGUSTUS D. AIKENS, JR.
GENERAL COUNSEL
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION
435 CARLTON BUILDING
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32399-1550
(904) 488-4747

####

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The present controversy reaches this court pursuant to Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv), and Article V, Section 3(b)(3), of the Florida Constitution, following the First District Court of Appeals's December 22, 1989, decision. 1

The First District adopted the Report and Recommendation submitted to it by an administrative Hearing Officer as "the order and opinion of the court". The First District Court's adopted opinion interpreted Florida Patients Compensation Fund v. Rowe, 472 So.2d 1145 (Fla. 1985)<sup>2</sup> as holding the application of a multiplier is mandatory in contingent fee cases. As additional authority, the First District cited the opinions in Quanstrom v. Standard Guaranty Insurance Co., 519 So.2d 1135 (Fla. 5th DCA 1988) and State Farm Fire & Casualty Co. v. Palma, 524 So.2d 1035 (Fla. 4th DCA 1988).

The First District recognized its decision expressly and directly conflicted with the Third District Court of Appeal's decisions in Travelers Indemnity Company v. Sotolongo, 513 So.2d

<sup>1.</sup> A conformed copy of the First District Court of Appeal's decision in <u>Ganson v. State of Florida</u>, <u>Department of Administration Office of State Employees' Insurance</u>, \_\_\_\_\_So.2d \_\_\_\_\_(Fla. 1st DCA 1989), is attached hereto as required by Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.120(d), and designated A. 1-15.

<sup>2.</sup> A copy of <u>Florida Patients Compensation Fund v. Rowe</u>, 472 So.2d 1145 (Fla. 1985), is attached hereto as part of the Appendix allowed by Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.220 because of its centrality to the issues, and is designate A. 16-23.

1384 (Fla. 3d DCA 1987), Bankers Insurance Company v. Valmore

Gonzalez 545 So.2d 907 (Fla. 3d DCA 1989), and National

Foundation Life Insurance Company v. Wellington, 526 So.2d.766

(Fla. 3d DCA 1988). 5

The First District opinion expressly and directly conflicts with the Supreme Court of Florida's holding in Standard Guaranty Insurance Company v. Quanstrom, Case No. 72, 100, opinion issued January 11, 1990. In Quanstrom, this court approved the proposition in Travelers Indemnity Co. v. Sotolongo, 513 So.2d 1384 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1987) that the application of a multiplier is not mandatory, under Florida Patient's Compensation Fund v. Rowe, 472 So. 2d 1145 (Fla. 1985), when the prevailing party's counsel is employed on a contingency fee basis.

The underlying controversy arises out of a relatively simple insurance coverage administrative dispute. TERRI J. GANSON (here-after GANSON) initiated litigation against STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION, OFFICE OF STATE EMPLOYEES' INSURANCE (here-after DOA), seeking recovery of \$5,682.15.6 The only issue in dispute, exclusive of attorney's fees, in the underlying controversy centered on the definition of the term

<sup>3.</sup> A copy of <u>Travelers Indemnity Company v. Sotolong</u>, 513 So.2d 1384 (Fla. 3d DCA 1987), is attached hereto pursuant to Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.220, and designated A. 24-25.

<sup>4.</sup> A copy of Bankers Insurance Company v. Valmore Gonzalez, 545 So.2d 907 (Fla. 3d DCA 1989) is attached hereto as part of the Appendix allowed by Florida Rules of Appellate 9.220 because of its centrality to the issues, and is designated A. 26-28.

<sup>5.</sup> A copy of <u>National Foundation Life Insurance Company v. Wellington</u>, 526 So.2d 766 (Fla. 3d DCA 1988) is attached hereto as part of the Appendix allowed by Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure 9.220 because of its centrality to the issues, and is designated A. 29-30.

<sup>6.</sup> The dollar amount in dispute was never controverted.

"mental or nervous disorder" under the State Employees' Group Health Insurance Benefit Document.

GANSON appealed, pursuant to Section 120.68, Florida.

Statutes, a final administrative order of DOA denying a claim for health insurance benefits.

The First District reversed DOA's final order and granted GANSON's motion for attorney fees under section 120.57(1)(b)10, Florida Statutes (1987), based upon her assertion that DOA's final order was a gross abuse of the agency's discretion.

The District Court directed the DOA to refer the matter to the administrative hearing officer for an evidentiary hearing to determine the amount of reasonable attorney fees.

The hearing officer, after taking evidence, determined an enhancement to the award of \$24,125.00, for recovering \$5,682.15 in an administrative action which primarily consisted of filing an administrative petition, attending a 4 hour administrative hearing, taking two depositions, and filing one appeal, was required under Rowe.

The First District adopted the hearing officer's analysis totally and without comment.

Following the First District Court of Appeal's decision on December 22, 1989, DOA filed its Notice To Invoke Discretionary Jurisdiction of this court pursuant to Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.120 on January 19, 1990. The Department seeks review of the First District Court of Appeal's decision which is in express and direct conflict with decisions of the Florida Supreme Court and the Third District Court of Appeal.

## UMMARY OF \ 1 1 1

The F t Di Court of J l decision in v.

State of Florida, Department of Administration, Office of State

Employees' Insurance, So.2d (Fla. 1st DCA 1989) is in express and direct conflict with the Supreme Court decisions in Standard Guaranty Ins. Co. v. Quanstrom, So.2d (Fla. 1990), and Bankers Life Ins. Co. v. Owen, So.2d (Fla. 1990), and Florida Patients Compensation Fund v. Rowe, 472 So.2d 1145 (Fla. 1985), which cases expressly make the enhancement factor discretionary. Thus, this court has jurisdiction pursuant to Art. V, Section 3, Fla. Const. and Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.030.

#### ARGUMENT I

THE DECISION OF THE FIRST DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN GANSON V. STATE OF FLORIDA,

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION, SO.2D

(FLA. 1989), IS EXPRESSLY AND

DIRECTLY IN CONFLICT WITH THE DECISIONS OF THE SUPREME COURT IN STANDARD GUARANTY

INSURANCE COMPANY V. QUANSTROM, SO.2D

(FLA. 1990), AND WITH FLORIDA

PATIENTS COMPENSATION FUND V. ROWE, 472

SO.2D 1145 (FLA. 1985).

The decision of the First District Court in <u>Ganson</u> is in direct conflict with this Court's recent opinion in <u>Standard</u>

<u>Guaranty Insurance Co. v. Quanstrom</u>, \_\_\_\_\_ So.2d \_\_\_\_\_ (Fla. 1990) which resolved inconsistent interpretations applied to Rowe.

Historically, the decision of this Court in <u>Florida Patients</u> Compensation Fund v. Rowe, has been interpreted and applied so differently in the various District Courts of this State that the outcome of attorney fee requests in contingency cases became unreasonable and unpredictable. The credibility of the court

system and the legal system was sacrificed at the expense of unsuccessful litigants. This unpredictability stemmed from an interpretation of this Court's opinion in <a href="Rowe">Rowe</a>: whether an, enhancement multiplier is mandatory or permissive.

The First District Court in <u>Ganson</u> clearly recognized the divergent interpretations and differing results that have been reached by courts on whether the application of an enhancement multiplier in contingency fee cases is <u>mandatory</u> or not, pursuant to <u>Rowe</u>. After specific consideration of the language in <u>Rowe</u>, and other decisions where opposite conclusions on similar facts have been reached, the <u>Ganson</u> court took the position, which was rejected by this Court in <u>Quanstrom</u>, that the mandatory application of a risk multiplier is the better reasoned view. The court in pertinent part held:

Although the matter is not entirely free from doubt, unless and until the matter is further clarified by the Florida Supreme Court. it would appear that the better reasoned view, and the most widely accepted view, is that the contingency risk multiplier should be treated as mandatory in cases where the party seeking fees has entered into a contingent fee agreement. (emphasis added)

Under <u>Rowe</u> it is indisputable that the application of an enhancement or detraction figure from the lodestar is discretionary. This court expressly held:

Once the court arrives at the lodestar figure, it <u>may add or subtract</u> from the fee based upon a "contingency risk" factor and the "results obtained." <u>Rowe</u> at 1155. (Emphasis added).

The Florida Supreme Court utilized the term "may", which has for decades been recognized as a permissive and not a mandatory verb. McDonald v. Rowland, 65 So.2d 12 (Fla. 1953).

In spite of this specific discretionary language in Rowe, supra, the First District Court in Ganson found that the mandatory application of the contingency risk multiplier was the better reasoned view, and applied it as such. Ganson is so flagrantly contrary to this Court's primary purpose in Rowe, of supplying uniformity among the district courts, that clearly there is a conflict.

In Quanstrom the parties disputed the definition of the term "inoperable" under Florida's no-fault statute. The court ultimately determined Quanstrom was entitled to personal injury protection benefits under an automobile policy in the amount of \$2,066.41. She subsequently made a claim for \$8,100 in attorney's fees with an enhancement multiplier of 3. This Court summarily dismissed the decision of the Fifth District Court which held the application of the multiplier to be mandatory in contingency fee cases according to Rowe. In so finding to the contrary, this Court specifically held:

We approve <u>Travelers Indemnity Co. v.</u>
<u>Sotolongo</u> for the proposition that the application of a multiplier is not mandatory under <u>Rowe</u> when the prevailing party's counsel is employed on a contingency fee basis, and we disapprove the contrary view set forth in the opinion below.

In the instant case, medical coverage for <a href="Ganson's">Ganson's</a>
pre-existing mental condition was disputed under certain
pre-existing conditions exclusions in the State Group Health
Insurance Plan Benefit Document. The condition was deemed covered
by the Court. The First District Court approved a lodestar of
24,125.00 and applied an enhancement of 2 to arrive at an approved
attorney fee of \$48,250.00. The First District Court concluded
the trial court had no discretion whether or not to apply an
enhancement multiplier and opined in reference to the Rowe
decision:

the use of the phrase "entitle to enhancement" supports a conclusion that the application of a multiplier is mandatory in contingent fee cases, and Florida appellate courts in two districts have so held. See State Farm Fire & Casualty Co. v. Palma, 524 So.2d 1035 (Fla. 4th DCA 1988); Quanstrom v. Standard Guaranty Insurance Company, 519 So.2d 1135 (Fla. 5th DCA 1988).

The <u>Ganson</u> decision is clearly in conflict with the decision in <u>Quanstrom</u> where this Court clarified the language of <u>Rowe</u> that has lead to **so** many contrary results on cases with similar factual, and legal issues. <u>Quanstrom</u> unequivocally found the application of a multiplier is not mandatory.

The conflict between the results reached in <u>Ganson</u> and the results reached by the Supreme Court in <u>Rowe</u> and <u>Quanstrom</u> are of the nature that Article V, Section 3, Constitution of Florida, and Rule 9.030, Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure, were designed to address. Therefore this court is respectfully requested to accept jurisdiction and resolve the conflict on the merits.

Furthermore, this Court issued an opinion in <u>Bankers Life</u>

Insurance Co. v. Owens, \_\_\_\_\_\_ So.2d \_\_\_\_\_\_, (Fla. 1990) rejecting the Fifth District Court's reliance on <u>Quanstrom</u> for the mandatory fee enhancement proposition. This Court remanded the cause to the trial court for reconsideration in the light of the principles set forth in <u>Quanstrom</u>. In so doing, this Court made it abundantly clear that the trial court should exercise its discretion in determining the appropriateness of applying a multiplier. In the instant case, the hearing officer, never exercised any discretion because he believed the application of a multiplier was mandatory.

## ARGUMENT' II

THE DECISION OF THE FIRST DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN GANSON V. STATE OF FLORIDA,

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION,

(Fla. 1ST DCA, 1989), IS EXPRESSLY

AND DIRECTLY IN CONFLICT WITH THE DECISION
OF THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF APPEALS IN

TRAVELERS INDEMNITY COMPANY V. SOTOLONGO,
513 SO.2D 1384 (Fla. 3RD DCA 1984).

The Third District Court expressly found the enhancement multiplier was not mandatory while the First District Court expressly adopted the view that application of the enhancement multiplier is mandatory. The factual and legal similarities between <u>Ganson v. Department of Administration</u> and <u>Travelers Indemnity Company v. Sotolongo</u>, are striking. Again, both cases involved disputes over insurance coverage, both cases sought recovery of attorney fees, and the decisions reached on the attorney fees are contrary and conflicting.

In <u>Ganson</u>, the Court interpreted <u>Rowe</u> for the proposition that multipliers <u>are mandatory</u> in contingency fee cases. At the outset, the Court cited specific language from <u>Rowe</u> and interpreted the phrase "entitlement to enhancement" in support of its conclusion that the application of a multiplier is mandatory. The language in pertinent part reads:

Based on our review of the decisions of other jurisdictions and commentaries on the subject, we conclude that in contingent fee cases, the lodestar figure calculated by the court is "entitled to enhancement" by an appropriate contingency risk multiplier in the range from 1.5 to 3.

Additionally, the Court expressly relied upon Quanstrom v.

Standard Guaranty Insurance Co., 519 So.2d 1135 (5th DCA 1988) and

State Farm Fire and Casualty Co. v. Palma, 524 So.2d 1035 (4th DCA 1988), solely for the proposition that application of the multiplier is mandatory. That proposition was clearly disapproved in both of those cases on appeal to this Court. In Quanstrom, it was emphasized that the words "must consider" do not mean "must apply", but "means must consider whether or not to apply" the contingency fee multiplier.

## CONCLUSION

The importance of this Court reviewing the conflicts presented by <u>Ganson</u> cannot be overstated. The First District Court's decision in <u>Ganson</u> expressly adopted a position that not only conflicts with the Third District Court of Appeal's decision in <u>Travelers Indemnity Company v. Sotolongo</u>, but to a greater extent conflicts with this Court's decisions in <u>Rowe</u>, <u>Quanstrom</u>, and Bankers Life. The First District, in agreement with the Fifth

District in <u>Quanstrom</u>, concluded the multiplier to be mandatory. That conclusion was clearly rejected by this Court's opinions.

Therefore, the State of Florida, Department of Administration, respectfully requests this Court to accept jurisdiction to correct the conflict created by this case.