IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION, OFFICE OF STATE EMPLOYEES' INSURANCE,

Petitioner.

i cuttoner,	
v.	Case No. 75,396
TERRIJ. GANSON,	
Respondent.	
	/

JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT TERRI J. GANSON

A Discretionary Proceeding to Review a Decision of the District Court Appeal, First District State of Florida

Kenneth D. Kranz **Eric** B. **Tilton**, P.A. 241-B East Virginia Street Tallahassee, Florida 32301 (904) 561-6111 Attorney for Respondent

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Petitioner Department seeks to invoke this Court's jurisdiction to review a decision of the First District Court of Appeal setting the amount of attorneys' fees to be awarded against the Department arising out of a successful appeal by Respondent Ganson of an administrative action taken by the Department.

The underlying administrative action was brought by Respondent Ganson pursuant to 8120.57(1), Fla. Stat. (1987), for recovery of health insurance benefits due Respondent under the State Group Health Insurance Plan. After an evidentiary hearing, Respondent received a favorable Recommended Order from a Division of Administrative Hearings Hearing Officer. Subsequently, however, Petitioner Department issued a Final Order which rejected the Hearing Officer's findings and recommendations and denied the claimed insurance benefits.

Respondent Ganson appealed Petitioner's Final Order to the First District Court of Appeal pursuant to 6120.68, Fla. Stat. (1987), and timely moved for an award of attorneys' fees and costs against Petitioner Department pursuant to 6120.57(1)(b)10., Fla. Stat. (1987). On July 7,1989, the First District Court of Appeal issued its opinion reversing the Petitioner Department's Final Order and granting Respondent's motion for attorneys' fees pursuant to 6120.57(1)(b)10., Fla. Stat. (1987), based upon a finding that "theagency action which precipitated the appeal was a gross abuse of the agency's discretion".

The matter was eventually remanded back to the Division of Administrative Hearings Hearing
Officer for recommendations regarding the amount of reasonable attorneys' fees to be awarded. An
evidentiary hearing was held, and the Hearing Officer issued his recommendations to the Court on

^{1.} Other statutory grounds for an award of fees were also alleged, but were not subsequently addressed by the Court.

^{2.} Ganson v. State of Florida, Department of Administration, Office of State Employees' Insurance, 14**F.L.W.** 1594 (Fla. 1st DCA Jul. 7,1989).

October 12,1989. The determination of the amount of fees involved application of the *Rowe* ¹ methodology, including enhancement of the lodestar fee by a contingency risk multiplier of 2.0. On December 22, 1989, the First District Court of Appeal adopted the findings and recommendations of the Hearing Officer and awarded fees of \$48,250.00 and costs of \$501.94 to Respondent. *Ganson v. State* of *Florida Department of Administration*, Off *ice* of *State Employees' Insurance*, No. 88-1568 (Fla. 1st DCA Dec. 22,1989) (opinion and order on attorney fee). ²

On January 11,1990, subsequent to the date on which the First District Court of Appeal's decision on the amount of fees to be awarded against Petitioner Department became final, this Court issued a trilogy of cases in which it revisited the *Rowe* methodology regarding, among other things, whether or not a contingency risk multiplier is mandatory when a contingency fee arrangement is involved. *Standard Guaranty Ins.* Co. v. *Quanstrom*, No. 72,100 (Fla. Jan. 11,1990); *State Farm Fire & Casualty* Co. v. *Palma*, No. 72,730 (Fla. Jan. 11,1990); and *Bankers Life Ins. Co.* v. *Owens*, No. 73,319 (Fla. Jan. 11,1990). Petitioner Department filed a motion for rehearing on January 12,1990, which was denied on January 26,1990. Notice to invoke the discretionary jurisdiction of this Court was filed by Petitioner on January 22, 1990, seeking review of the First District Court of Appeal's December 22 *Opinion and Order on Attorney Fee*.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Regardless of whether conflict jurisdiction exists, the sole question of policy and law which

Petitioner Department presents here for review is whether or not the application of a contingency risk

multiplier is mandatory or discretionary under the *Rowe* methodology when a contingency fee

^{1.} Florida Patient's Compensation Fund v. Rowe, 472 So.2d 1145 (Fla. 1985).

^{2.} It is this decision which Petitioner State is asking this Court to review, and it will be cited herein as Ganson. In accordance with Fla. R. App. P. 9.120(d), a conformed copy of the decision is attached hereto as Appendix A.

^{3.} For convenience, these decisions by the Supreme Court will be referred to herein as Quanstrom, Palma, and Bankers Life, respectively. Where reference is made to the respective underlying district court decisions, it will be so indicated unless clear from the context.

arrangement is involved. At the time *Ganson* was issued, there was a divergence of opinion among the district courts as to that issue. Now, however, as a matter of broad policy and law that question has been answered explicitly and unequivocally by this Court in *Quanstrom*, *Palma*, and *Bankers Life*. Because *Ganson* bears a sufficient similarity to *Palma*, and because the ambiguity which once existed under *Rowe* on the broad issue of contingency risk multipliers has now been resolved completely, no further purpose in this regard will be served by this Court exercising its discretionary jurisdiction.

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

The Florida Supreme Court has discretionary jurisdiction to review a decision of a district court of appeal that expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of the supreme court or another district court of appeal on the same point of law. Art. V 8(3)(b)(3) Fla. Const. (1980); Fla. R. App. P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv).

Petitioner Department argues that in *Ganson* the First District Court of Appeal expressly adopted a position which conflicts with the Third District Court of Appeal's decision in *Travelers Indemnity* Co. v. Sotolongo, 513So.2d 1384 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1987), and with the Florida Supreme Court's decisions in *Rowe*, *Quanstrom*, and *Banker's Life*. As pointed out in *The Florida Star v*. B.J.F., 530So.2d 286 (Fla. 1988), this Court has final and inherent power to determine what constitutes express and direct conflict for purposes of Art. V 8(3)(b) Fla. Const. (1980). However, to exist at all, that conflict must not merely be implied; it must exist within the "four corners of the decision." Department of Health and Rehabilitative Services v. National Adoption

Counseling Service, Inc., 498So.2d 888 (Fla. 1986); Reaves v. State, 485So.2d 829 (Fla. 1986).

An examination of the First District Court of Appeal's decision in *Ganson* reveals an express acknowledgement of the divergent opinions in the various districts on the question of whether or not contingency risk multipliers are mandatory in contingency **fee** cases. Faced with these conflicting viewpoints, the First District Court of Appeal stated that:

Although the matter is not entirely free from doubt, unless and until the matter is further clarified by the Florida Supreme Court, it would

а

appear that the better reasoned view, and the most widely accepted view, is that the contingency risk multiplier should be treated as mandatory in cases where the party seeking fees has entered into a contingent fee agreement. ¹

Therefore, this Court's discretionary jurisdiction appears to exist under Art. V $\delta(3)(b)(3)$ Fla. Const. (1980).

ARGUMENT

I. EVEN IF JURISDICTION EXISTS, THE COURT SHOULD DECLINE TO EXERCISE ITS DISCRETION TO REVIEW THE CASE BECAUSE THE DECISION OF THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL CLOSELY RESEMBLES AND IS CONSISTENT WITH THE RECENT DECISION OF THE SUPREME COURT IN PALMA.

In its jurisdictional brief, the Department addressed but two-thirds of this Court's recent trilogy of contingency fee cases. Conspicuously absent from Petitioner's brief was the second case in the sequence of three contingency fee cases decided by this Court on January 11,1990. The missing case is $Palma^2$, and, in it, this Court approved the decision of the Fourth District Court of Appeal in

Notwithstanding this statement by the First District Court of Appeal regarding the better reasoned view, the Court did not explicitly hold that contingency risk multipliers are mandatory. It should be noted that Ganson also contains language which can be read to give rise to an inference that the Court did not feel that it had no discretion in awarding a contingency risk multiplier. In its discussion of the contingency risk multiplier at pages 10-12, the Court considered a number of factors and addressed and rejected several arguments by the Department, eventually stating that:

For *all of the reasons set forth above*, it is concluded that a contingency risk multiplier should be applied in this case. (emphasis added)

Respondent concedes, however, that any ambiguity so created does not clearly obviate the superficially apparent existence of conflict jurisdiction.

2. A copy of State Farm Fire & Casualty Co. v. Palma, No. 72,730 (Fla. Jan. 11,1990) is included as Appendix **B.**

^{1.} See Ganson; Appendix A, pages 9-10.

State Farm Fire & Casualty Co. v. Palma, 524 So.2d 1035 (Fla. 4th DCA 1988). Palma is critically important to this case because the Fourth District Court of Appeal's decision was cited by the First District Court of Appeal in Ganson for the very proposition which the Petitioner Department now contends is in conflict with Quanstrom. Furthermore, on the facts apparent within the "four corners of the opinion," Ganson not only bears much more resemblance to Palma than Quanstrom, it is consistent with the result in Palma.

Examination of Paragraph 5. of the section of the *Ganson* opinion relating to calculation of attorney'sfees reveals that the district court decisions in *Quanstrom* ¹ and *Palma* are cited by the First District Court of Appeal not only an equal number times, but for the same points of law (including for the proposition that the application of a multiplier in contingency fees cases is mandatory)! Furthermore, the Court recognized the similarity between *Ganson* and the district court decisions in *Quanstrorn* and *Palma* with respect to the nature of the fee agreement ³, but more importantly, it in fact specifically remarked about the similarity between *Ganson* and *Palma* in discussing the overall size of the fee award in relation to the size of the recovery:

The *Palma* court noted that the litigation in that case had become protracted due to "stalwart defense" and "militant resistance;" characteristics shared by the litigation in this case. (emphasis added)⁴

Like *Ganson*, *Palma* involved a challenge to a trial court's *award* of a contingency risk multiplier. Like *Quanstrom*, *Palma* involved a dispute over automobile PIP insurance benefits (a \$600.00 medical bill), and the fee arrangement between the insured and the attorney involved an

^{1.} Quanstrom v. Standard Guaranty Ins. Co., 519 So.2d 1135 (Fla. 5th DCA 1988).

^{2.} See Ganson; Appendix A, pages 9-12.

^{3.} See Ganson; Appendix A, page 10.

^{4.} *Id*. at 9.

agreement that the attorney would be entitled to a fee set by the Court under 6627.428, Fla. Stat.' On remand from the Fourth District Court of Appeal after reversal on the merits with directions to determine and award attorneys' fees, the trial court held an evidentiary hearing and awarded fees of \$253,500.00, which included enhancement by a contingency risk multiplier of 2.6. The insurer appealed the fee award, contending, among other things, that the contingency risk factor was not applicable. Citing the Fifth District Court of Appeal's decision in *Quanstrom*², the Fourth District Court of Appeal held that the contingency risk factor was applicable "becausecounsel took the case on a contingency basis requiring him to prevail in order to receive compensation for his services." On review, this Court approved the resulting application of a contingency risk multiplier on the facts of that case.

In contrast to Palma and *Ganson*, Quanstrom arose out of a trial court's refusal to consider awarding a contingency risk multiplier. Like Palma, the case involved a dispute over automobile PIP benefits and the fee arrangement between the insured and the attorney similarly involved an agreement that the attorney would be entitled to a fee set by the Court under 6627.428 Fla. Stat. Unlike Palma and *Ganson*, the trial court declined to apply a contingency risk multiplier because it did not consider this to be a contingency fee arrangement. The Fifth District Court of Appeal reversed and remanded, holding that this situation did constitute a contingency fee arrangement and, further, that application of a contingency risk multiplier is mandatory whenever a contingency fee arrangement is involved. Subsequently, in Quanstrom, this Court approved the Fifth District Court of Appeal's decision that this situation constituted a contingency fee arrangement for which a contingency risk multiplier could be applied, but expressly decided that application of a

^{1.} Unlike any of the cases with which it is said to conflict, Ganson involved an award of attorney's fees pursuant to \$120.57(1)(b)10., Fla. Stat.

^{2.} Quanstrom v. Standard Guaranty Ins. Co., 519 So.2d 1135 (Fla. 5th DCA 1988).

^{3.} The Fifth District Court also specifically noted that its decision was in direct conflict with Travelers Indemnity Co. v. Sotolongo, 513 So.2d 1384 (Fla. 3d DCA 1984).

contingency fee multiplier was not mandatory on the trial judge. The case was remanded by this Court to the trial judge for reconsideration as to whether and how big a multiplier should be applied.

In the final case of its contingency fee trilogy, Bankers Life, this Court reversed the Fifth District Court of Appeal's decision in Bankers Life Insurance Co. v. Owens, 532 So.2d 1115 (Fla. 5th DCA 1988). That decision, a per curiam affirmance on the authority of the same Court's earlier Quanstrom decision', was remanded to the trial court for reconsideration in light of the principles set forth by this Court in Quanstrom and Palma.

"striking" factual and legal similarity to *Ganson*, arose out of a challenge to a trial court's application of a contingency risk multiplier. The case involved a dispute over benefits payable under a homeowner's policy for lost personal property. Presumably, entitlement to fees was based on 6627.428, Fla. Stat, and it can be inferred from the District Court's opinion that the trial court not only apparently felt legally compelled to award a contingency risk multiplier, but, unlike both *Palma* and *Ganson*, did so without an evidentiary hearing or any findings supporting the fee enhancement. The Third District Court of Appeal reversed and remanded, stating that "the court is not obligated to adjust the lodestar fee in every case where a successful prosecution of the claim was unlikely." The Court directed the trial court to conduct an evidentiary hearing and make findings supporting a fee enhancement. This Court, in *Quanstrom*, approved *Sotolongo* for the proposition that application of a contingency risk multiplier is not mandatory.

Subsequent to The First District Court of Appeal's decision in *Ganson*, this Court explicitly resolved the differing views taken by the district courts when it stated that application of a contingency risk multiplier is not mandatory in contingency fee cases. That issue is no longer in need of resolution. Within the four corners of the opinion, *Ganson* is distinguishable from all of the foregoing cases

.

a

a

a

- 1. Quanstrom v. Standard Guaranty Ins. Co., 519 So.2d 1135 (Fla. 5th DCA 1988).
- 2. Travelers Indemnity Co. v. Sotolongo, 513 So.2d 1384 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1987).

except *Palma* which it closely mirrors and with whose result *Ganson* is consistent. That being the case, there is no need for this Court to accept jurisdiction of this matter.

a

CONCLUSION

From a public policy standpoint, review of any conflict presented by *Ganson* is no longer necessary. The issue presented here, whether or not the application of a contingency risk multiplier as an enhancement to the lodestar is required in contingency fee cases, has been addressed recently and extensively by this Court in *Quanstrom*, *Palma*, and *Bankers Life*. Any differences of opinion which existed between the district courts on this issue now have been resolved explicitly by this Court. No further statement by this Court is necessary to promote and preserve the uniformity of principle and practice within this state regarding the issue raised by Petitioner Department. Furthermore, the extent of any actual conflict which may be reflected by *Ganson* is overshadowed by its marked similarity to and consistency with *Palma*, one of this Court's recent simultaneous pronouncements on this issue. Therefore, Respondent, Terri J. Ganson, respectfully requests that this Court decline to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction. pursuant to Art. V 8(3)(b)(3) Fla. Const. (1980).